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1 Introduction   

1.1 What is a Comprehensive Plan? 

A comprehensive plan is a document developed by a municipality to describe a shared vision 

for the communityôs future. It is the culmination of a process of gathering information, soliciting 

public opinion via surveys and public meetings, and distilling it all into a plan that sets out 

objectives, policies, and standards to guide future growth and development. Municipal boards 

and agencies use comprehensive plans to make decisions about land use and to prioritize public 

investment and the extension of public services. 

A comprehensive plan is not a law. The Town Board must pass a resolution adopting the 

comprehensive plan in order to make the guidelines and recommendations it contains official. 

Once that has been done, New York State statute [Town Law § 272-a] requires that ñall 

municipal land use regulations must be in accordance with the comprehensive plan, and also that 

all plans for capital projects of another government agency on land included in the 

comprehensive plan shall take the plan into consideration.ò  

In order to bring about the future envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan, municipal leaders must 

be familiar with the Plan and enact the regulations needed to achieve the goals. 

1.2 Benefits of a Comprehensive Plan 

1. Strengthens local control ï according to New York State law, other government 

agencies must defer to the community goals and standards for local development 

set forth in a legally adopted Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan can 

help a community resist the imposition of unwanted uses of the town by outside 

authorities. 

2. Proactive ï a Comprehensive Plan provides a roadmap to a desirable future, and 

helps communities identify and resolve issues early, before they become 

intractable problems. 

3. Saves money ï a Comprehensive Plan promotes more efficient development and 

makes coordination between municipal departments and sharing of services 

between jurisdictions simpler. 

4. Promotes economic development ï a legally adopted Comprehensive Plan helps 

communities attract business, support and retain existing businesses, and makes 

the community eligible for many state and federal grants. 

5. Protects community character ï a Comprehensive Plan is a tool to help preserve 

the things residents value most about their community, while it promotes growth 

and development. 

6. Mission Statement - The mission statement for this comprehensive plan is listed 

in section 3.0.  

1.3 Review Schedule 

The Comprehensive Plan, adopted by resolution at the November 19, 2012 Town of Smithville 

Town Board meeting will be reviewed at a minimum every three (3) years by the Town 

Supervisor, the Town Board and the Town Planning Board. 
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2. Profile of the Town of Smithville 

2.1 Location  

The Town of Smithville is comprised of 50.8 square miles (32,512 acres) in the southwestern 

part of Chenango County. The town is five miles from the Vill age of Greene, 25 miles north of 

Binghamton and 20 miles south of Norwich, the county seat of Chenango County. There are no 

villages within the town, but there are three hamlets wherein some of the population is 

concentrated.  The largest is Smithville Flats in the western part of the town. The two smaller 

hamlets are Smithville Center in the central part, and Tyner in the eastern part of the town.  

Many residents of the town work, shop, and conduct other business in Greene, Norwich, and 

Binghamton. The western part of the town is only approximately 10 miles from a connection 

with Interstate 81, which is a North-South route between the southern United States and the 

Canadian border. On the eastern border, State Route 12 provides access to both Binghamton and 

Norwich, as well as on to Utica and the Adirondack Mountains. State Route 41 is a scenic route 

that passes through Smithville Flats and the Finger Lakes area and diagonally connects Route 17 

and the NYS Thruway.   (The following New York State map shows the location of the Town of 

Smithville, marked with the letter ñA.ò) 
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2.2 History 

Chenango County and northern Broome County were once considered a buffer zone between the 

Oneida-Iroquois of New York and the Susquehanna-Iroquois of Pennsylvania. Game was 

plentiful in the buffer zone, but few ð if anyð permanent camps were established there. 

The Oneida supported the British during the Revolutionary War. As penalty for siding with the 

British, the Oneidas were forced to cede this buffer zone to New York State by Governor George 

Clinton as part of the Treaty of September 22, 1778. 

In 1798, Joseph Agard and Major Sheldon of Connecticut settled in a hunting cabin in Smithville  

with their families. This cabin had been built the previous year by Robert Lyttle on the banks of 

Genegantslet Creek, and upon a meadow plot that they called the ñBig Flats.ò The first winter on 

the Big Flats was a severe one, and the group of 15 struggled to survive. In the spring, they were 

able to plant crops and develop agriculture. Gradually, more pioneers joined them and the 

settlement began to increase in population. In around 1799, Edward Loomis moved from 

Massachusetts to the eastern part of the town and proceeded to build the first road there, which 

joined Oxford with Smithville Flats. The first school was established by Samuel Askeels in 1802. 

As the population of the small settlement grew, the settlers began to discuss establishing a town. 

In March of 1808, the residents held meetings, the results of which were the appropriation of a 

portion of the Town of Greene, and the subsequent formation of a new town, which included the 

settlements at Big Flats and at Ludlow Creek. It was named Smithville after Elisha Smith, the 

first agent located on the Chenango Triangle, under the Hornby Estate. 

According to the 1880 History of Chenango and Madison Counties there were four churches in 

Smithville Flats at that time: Baptist, Universalist, Methodist Episcopal, and Presbyterian. There 

was also a Union Free School, two hotels, a flour mill, a grist, a combined saw and planing mill, 

a steam saw mill, two wagon shops, a cabinet shop, three blacksmith shops, a harness and shoe 

shop, two cooper shops, two shoe shops, three general merchandise shops, two druggist shops, a 

grocery store, and a cheese factory. There were two physicians in town at that time. The 

Genegantslet Volunteer Fire Company was organized in 1852, and continues to protect the 

property of the town. (Other reports say it started in 1864.) The first Post Office in Smithville 

Flats was established in the early 1800s. 

East Smithville, where Edward Loomis settled around 1812, is near the junction of Ludlow and 

Bowman Creeks, which together furnish a moderate source of water-power. The first store in 

East Smithville opened around 1829.  Later there was a church, a district school, a saw mill, grist 

and planning mill, a creamery, a blacksmith shop, a shoe shop, and a carding mill. A Post Office 

was established in 1881, but it was discontinued in 1900. 
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2.3 Historic Sites 

The following is a partial list of existing historic resources significant to the history and 

development of the area. It should be noted that this list does not include all the buildings of 

attractive, time-honored character in the town, but is rather a list of those with documented 

historic significance. Many other homes, commercial buildings, farmhouses and outbuildings 

also contribute to the townôs quaint appearance.  

 

 

2.3.1 Community Center ï built as a Universalist church in 1842. Post and beam construction 

enclosed one large, open room with a balcony. In 1916, the Smithville Valley Grange purchased 

the property, removed the balcony, and added a floor to make it a two-story building. The 

Grange held meetings, dances, and other community events there. In the 1990s, the Grange had 

only a few members left, and could no longer afford the upkeep of the building; they deeded it to 

the Town of Smithville under the stipulation that the group could continue to hold their meetings 

there. Community members, along with members of the Smithville Historical Society, raised the 

money to restore the old church building and convert it to a community center. An addition at the 

buildingôs rear, also of post and beam construction, houses the town offices.   
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2.3.2 Seeberôs Tavern ï (formerly Smithville House) ï built in the 1850s by Erastus Agard, son 

of one of the initial settlers. It has a long history of owners and proprietors and continues to 

operate as a tavern.   
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 2.3.3 Whitehall  ï located on Route 41 opposite post office ï private residence 

The original components of this mansion were erected in 1818. Whitehall is one of the genuine 

pieces of residential antiquity in this part of the countryside. The house is of Italianate style, with 

some Greek revival elements, and measures 47 feet wide, 70 feet deep, and 26 feet high to the 

eaves with an additional 14 feet for the roof and 9 feet for the cupola, for a total height of 51 feet.  

The 169 spindle Honduras mahogany stairwell begins on the first floor and ends at the fourth 

floor widowôs walk. The basic building is of post and beam construction with mortise and tenon 

joints pinned together and cross braced. Some of the beams are approximately 8 inches by 8 

inches by 45-plus feet long, all from a single piece of wood. 

2.3.4 Maplehurst ï moved in 1999 to its present location on the northern edge of Smithville 

Flats at the junction of Routes 41 and 220. It is a three-story Victorian house built in the 1870s. 

In the early 1900s, it became ñMaplehurst Lodgeò ï a hunterôs delight, specializing in the sport 

of hunting partridge, woodcock, squirrel, grouse, rabbit, and fox that was heavily advertised in 

New York City.  Formerly located across the street from todayôs community center, the building 

has been vacant for many years.  

2.3.5 Former Grange Hall in Tyner  ï The Grange in Tyner was organized in 1884 and the 

Grange Hall was built in 1894. The Grange discontinued in 1903. The building still stands and 

has been used for several purposes over the years, such as dance hall, community center, and so 
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on. After the Flood of 1935, which washed away the church, the Grange Hall was used as a 

church for a time. 

 

2.3.6 Methodist Church in Smithville Center ï built in 1840, it is still used for church services 

and fundraising projects, such as ice cream socials and bazaars. It has been renovated over the 

years to keep up with the times; the latest update provides accessibility for the handicapped. 
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2.3.7 The Grange Hall in Smithville Center ï built in 1892, it is still used for Grange meetings 

during warm-weather months. (During the winter, meetings are held at members homes as the 

building lacks central heating.) It has also been used as polling place for residents on that side of 

town.  (As of this writing, 9/17/12, the Smithville Center Grange has gone inactive and the 

polling place moved to the fire station in Smithville Flats.) 

2.3.8 Schoolhouses  ï In 1877, there were 13 school districts in the Town of Smithville, serving 

476 school-age children. In 1878, districts 1 and 13 combined to form the Smithville Union 

School and Academy in the hamlet of Smithville Flats. From 1920 to 1925, three years of high 

school courses were offered. In 1941, the Smithville School District and the Greene School 

District centralized; the small district one-room schools in the area were closed. Smithville Flats 

students in first through sixth grade, continued to attend school at the building in Smithville 

Flats, which was originally constructed in 1906 and is now a private residence.  

2.3.9 Cemeteries          

The cemeteries are listed on the Town Tax Rolls as exempt properties.  The only cemeteries still 

active are the Upper Cemetery and the Maple Grove Cemeteries in Smithville Flats.  
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